
BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
AGENDA PACKET 

REGULAR TRUSTEES’ MEETING  
MONDAY APRIL 25, 2016 

1:00 P.M. 

 

 

Agenda:    Pages 2-3 
 
 
Administrator:    Pages 4-22 
 

 Board and Commission Policy    Pages 4-13 
 

 CCN Partnership Agreement    Pages 14-15 
 

 Greene County Sheriff’s Office:    Pages 16-22 
 

 
Finance:    Pages 23-24 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Human Resources:    Pages 25-31   
 

 BWC Group Rating    Pages 25-29 
 

 Biweekly Report    Pages 30-31 
 
Zoning:    Pages 32-35 

 Biweekly Report 
 

Information Technology:    Pages 36-37 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Road:     Pages 38-65 
 

 Library Roof Replacement    Pages 38-63 
 

 Hiring Summer Seasonal    Page 64 
 

 Biweekly Report    Page 65 
 
Fire:    Pages 66-70 
 

 UPDATED:  Purchase Request for Blue Card Training    Pages  66-67 
 

 Biweekly Report    Pages 68-70 
 
 
 

1 of 70

1 of 70



 

 
Agenda 

Regular Trustees’ Meeting 
Monday, April 25, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

Community Room, Lower Level of Fire Station #61,  2195 Dayton-Xenia Road, Beavercreek, OH  45434 
 

Pledge of Allegiance - Moment of Silence 

 Approve Agenda for the April 25, 2016, Meeting 

 Approve the April 27, 2016, Payroll in the amount of $ 

 Approval of Bills in the amount of $106,507.26 + 

 Approval of Minutes: 
 Regular Meeting held April 11, 2016   
 Special Meeting held April 15, 2016 

 
Prescheduled Speaker:   

 Greene County Sheriff’s Office 
 
Citizens Desiring to Speak (Each Speaker is Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
Old Business:    

 None. 
 
New Business:   

 None. 
 
Administrator: 

 Board and Commission Policy 

 CCN Partnership Agreement 

 Greene County Sheriff’s Office Biweekly Report 

 Request to Schedule Special Meeting: 
o Secondary Emergency Access 

 
Finance: 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Human Resources:     

 BWC Group Rating Discussion 

 Youth Works 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Zoning:  

 Biweekly Report 
 

Information Technology:  

 Biweekly Report 
 
Road: 

 Library Roof Replacement 

 Hiring Summer Seasonal 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Fire: 

 UPDATED:  Purchase Request for Blue Card Training 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Legal Advisor:  
 
Trustees:             
 
Fiscal Officer: 
 
      (continued on reverse side) 

2 of 70

2 of 70



 

 
 
Executive Session: 

 Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(1) To consider the employment, dismissal,  discipline and 
compensation of a public employee. 

 Ohio Revised Code section 121.22(G)(3) Conferences with an attorney for the public body concerning 
disputes involving the public body that are the subject of pending or imminent court action. 

 Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(5) Matters required to be kept confidential by federal law or 
regulations or state statutes. 

 
 
Adjourn 

3 of 70

3 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
1 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy Title: Board and Commission Policy Approved: XXXX  
           
Section: I     Revised: XXXX   
  
Number: 001     Reviewed: XXXX 
 
 
PURPOSE: There are certain duties and responsibilities which are unique to the 

Zoning Commission and the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
 
APPLICATION:  This manual contains specific guidelines applicable to all Beavercreek 

Township Zoning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals members.    
 
REFERENCE(S): The Ohio Revised Code which may be applicable to each Board or 

Commission and the Ohio Ethics Laws. 
  
POLICY: 
 
1. Information Regarding Beavercreek Township 

 
1.1. The City of Beavercreek, Ohio is located within the boundaries of Beavercreek 

Township, but its boundaries are not identical to those of Beavercreek Township. The 
area occupied by the City of Beavercreek is referred to as the “incorporated” area of 
Beavercreek Township. The remaining area of the Township is referred to as the 
“unincorporated area” of the Township. Since the residents of the incorporated area of 
the Township reside both within the City of Beavercreek and within the Township they 
are entitled to vote for both municipal and township elected officials and to vote on both 
municipal and township wide tax levies such as the fire levy. However, residents of the 
unincorporated area may not vote on municipal elected official or municipal tax levies. 
 

2. Zoning Commission 
 
2.1. Authority 
 

2.1.1. The membership, powers and duties of the Beavercreek Township Zoning 
Commission are described in Chapter 519 of the Ohio Revised Code. The 
Commission has an obligation to respect all applicable laws in administering its 
duties by using sound planning and zoning principles. The Commission also has a 
responsibility to the public to provide a clear explanation of the administrative and 
decision-making policies and processes. 

2.1.2. The Zoning Commission is a public board consisting of five (5) citizens who 
reside in the unincorporated area of Beavercreek Township. Pursuant to Ohio 

BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP, GREENE COUNTY, OHIO 
BOARD AND COMMISSION POLICY MANUAL   

4 of 70

4 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
2 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

Revised Code 519.04, all members of the Commission must be appointed by the 
Beavercreek Township Board of Trustees. The appointment must be in writing and 
brought before the trustees where it is put to a vote. Re-appointments are required to 
follow the same procedure as an original appointment with regard to Trustee action. 

2.1.3. The terms of the Zoning Commission members shall be such length, and so 
arranged, that the term of only one member will expire each year. The Beavercreek 
Township Board of Trustees may also appoint up to two (2) alternate members to 
the Zoning Commission for terms to be determined by the Board of Trustees. An 
Alternate member shall take the place of an absent, regular member at any meeting 
of the Zoning Commission, according to the procedures prescribed by the 
Beavercreek Township Board of Trustees. When attending a meeting on behalf of 
an absent member, the alternate member may vote on any matter on which the 
absent member is authorized to vote. 

2.1.4. No employee of Beavercreek Township shall be a member of the Zoning 
Commission. Members of the Zoning Commission shall be removable for 
nonperformance of duty, misconduct in office, or other cause by the Board of 
Township Trustees upon written charges being filed with the board and after a 
public hearing has been held consistent with the procedure set forth in the 
Beavercreek Township Zoning Resolution. Non- performance of duty shall include, 
but is not limited to, a member’s failure to attend three (3) hearings and/or meetings, 
without prior notification,  of the Zoning Commission in one (1) calendar year. 
Vacancies shall be filled by the Board of Township Trustees and shall be for the 
unexpired term. 
 

2.2. Duties of the Zoning Commission 
 

2.2.1. The Zoning Commission is responsible for forwarding its recommendations to the 
Board of Trustees regarding proposed changes to the Township’s Zoning Resolution 
and/or changes to the zoning district boundaries as shown on the official Zoning 
District Map.  The Zoning Commission shall make recommendations to the Board 
of Trustees with respect to any applications filed requesting an amendment or 
amendments to the Zoning Resolution or a change to the Zoning District Map. The 
Zoning Commission may initiate amendments to the Zoning Resolution in 
accordance with Ohio Revised Code 519.12. The Zoning Commission may 
recommend that the Township Trustees conduct a study related to the planning and 
zoning of the Township. 
 

2.3. Applicability of Ohio Ethics Laws to the Zoning Commission 
 

2.3.1. Members of the Zoning Commission are  “public officials” as that term is defined 
in the Ohio Ethics Law, R.C. 102.01 (B); 

2.3.2. The Zoning Commission is a “public agency” as that term is defined in the Ohio 
Ethics Law, R.C. 102.01 (C). 
 

2.4. Applicability of Ohio Criminal Code to the Zoning Commission 
 

5 of 70

5 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
3 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

2.4.1. Members of the Zoning Commission are “public officials” and a “public servants” 
as those terms are defined in the Ohio Criminal Code, R.C. 2921.01 (A). 

2.4.2. As a “public officials” and a “public servants” Zoning Commissioners are 
prohibited from doing certain acts which are set forth in R.C. 2921.42, 2921.421 and 
2921.43. 

2.5. Violations of the Ohio Ethics Law and Ohio Criminal Code can result in Civil and 
Criminal Proceedings. 

 
2.5.1. Violations of the Ohio Ethics Code can be misdemeanors of the first and fourth 

degree. 
2.5.2. A violation of the Ohio Criminal Code can be a misdemeanor or a felony 

depending upon the nature of the offense. 
 

2.5.3. The Ohio Ethics Commission publishes information sheets to provide guidance 
for Public Officials. These information sheets are available on the Internet. Those 
with the most applicability are: 

2.5.3.1. Property Matters Affecting Family Members (#9) 
2.5.3.2. Property Matters Affecting a Public Official or Employee (#8) 
2.5.3.3. Accepting Gifts, Meals, Entertainment, or Other Things of Value (#7) 
2.5.3.4. Board Member Seeking Employment with The Board (#6) 
2.5.3.5. Selling Goods or Services to Public Agency (Local): (#2) 

 
3. Board of Zoning Appeals 

 
3.1. General Statement 

 
3.1.1. While most other Township citizen boards provide assistance or direction to the 

Township government itself, the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) is one of two 
boards that issues decisions directly affecting property owners. Therefore, the BZA 
is charged with deciding how to maintain the integrity of the Zoning Resolution 
while still working toward the betterment of the Township. The BZA has an 
obligation to respect all applicable laws in administering its duties. The BZA also 
has a responsibility to the public to provide a clear explanation of its policies and 
procedures. 
 

3.2. Authority 
 

3.2.1. The membership, powers and duties of the Beavercreek Township BZA are found 
in Chapter 519 of the Ohio revised Code. In addition, the duties and powers of the 
BZA are set forth in the Beavercreek Township Zoning Resolution. 
 

3.3. Composition of the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

3.3.1. The BZA is a public board consisting of five (5) citizens who reside in the 
unincorporated territory of Beavercreek Township. 

3.3.2. The Beavercreek Township Board of Trustees must appoint all members to the 
BZA. 

6 of 70

6 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
4 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

3.3.3. All regular members of the BZA serve five (5) year terms. The terms shall be so 
arranged that the term of one member will expire each year. 

3.3.4. The Beavercreek Township Board of Trustees may also appoint up to two (2) 
alternate members to the Township BZA for terms to be determined by the Board of 
Township Trustees. An alternate member shall take the place of an absent, regular 
member at any meeting of the BZA, according to the procedures prescribed by the 
Beavercreek Township Board of Trustees. When attending a meeting on behalf of 
an absent member, the alternate member may vote on any matter on which the 
absent member is authorized to vote. 

3.3.5. Each member or alternate member shall serve until his/her successor is appointed 
and qualified. 

3.3.6. No employee of Beavercreek Township shall be a member of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 

3.3.7. Members of the Board shall be removable for nonperformance of duty, 
misconduct in office or other cause by the Board of Trustees upon written charges 
being filed with the Trustees and after a public hearing has been held regarding the 
charges consistent with the procedure set forth in the Beavercreek Township Zoning 
Resolution. Nonperformance of duty shall include, but is not limited to, a member’s 
failure to attend three (3) hearings and/or meetings, without prior notification,  of 
the Board of Zoning Appeals in one (1) calendar year. 

3.3.8. Vacancies shall be filled by the Board of Township Trustees and shall be for the 
unexpired term. 
 

3.4. Duties and Authority of the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

3.4.1. Organize and adopt rules in accordance with the Zoning Resolution. 
3.4.2. Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, 

requirement, decision, or determination made by the Zoning Inspector or other 
administrative official in the enforcement of the Township’s zZoning Resolution or 
Sections 519.02 to 519.25 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

3.4.2.1. Such an appeal shall be taken within twenty (20) days after the decision by 
filing with the Zoning Inspector and the BZA a notice of appeal specifying the 
grounds thereoffor. 

3.4.2.2. The Zoning Inspector is required to transmit to the Board all papers 
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken. 

3.4.3. In exercising any of the above-mentioned powers, the BZA may reserve or affirm, 
in whole or in part, or modify the order, requirement, decision or determination 
appealed from, and may take such order, requirement, decision or determination as 
ought to be made, and to that end has all powers of the officer from whom the 
appeal is taken. 

3.4.4. Upon application, interpret the map in such a way as to carry out the intent and 
purpose of the Beavercreek Township Zoning Resolution where a street or lot layout 
actually on the ground, or as recorded, differs from the street and lot lines as shown 
on the Zoning Map. 

3.4.5. Grant variances from the Lot Size and Bulk requirements of the Zoning 
Resolution as will not be contrary to the public interest, but only in such cases 
where, the property owner has encountered practical difficulties in the use of his 

7 of 70

7 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
5 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

property. The purpose of such power is to provide property owners relief from the 
strict compliance the Zoning Resolution in individual cases. Restrictions on granting 
of variances as recognized by Ohio Law: 

3.4.5.1. Use Variances: 
3.4.5.1.1. A use variance allows a landowner to use existing property in a 

manner not permitted by the Resolution and inconsistent with uses in the 
surrounding area. Beavercreek Township’s Resolution does not provide 
for use variances. 

3.4.5.2. Area Variances: 
3.4.5.2.1. An area variance generally authorizes deviations from restrictions 

upon the Lot Size and Bulk requirements of the Zoning Resolution. 
3.4.5.2.2. The standard for granting a variance which relates solely to area 

requirements is a lesser standard than that applied to variances which 
relate to use. Recognizing that an area variance has less impact on a 
neighborhood than a use variance, an application for such a variance need 
not establish unnecessary hardship; it is sufficient that the application 
show practical difficulties. As a general standard, a property owner 
encounters “practical difficulties” whenever an area zoning requirement 
(e.g. frontage, setback, height) unreasonably deprives him of a permitted 
use of his property. 

3.4.5.2.3. There are a number of factors that the Township’s BZA should 
consider in determining whether a property owner seeking an area 
variance has encountered practical difficulties in the use of his property. 
These factors are set forth in the Beavercreek Township Zoning 
Resolution. 

3.4.5.2.3.1.  
 

3.4.6. Grant certificates for any Conditional Use of land, building, or other structure if 
the requested conditional use is provided for in the Zoning Resolution. 

3.4.6.1. The BZA has the power to authorize a zoning certificate for any 
“conditional use.” 

3.4.6.2. Before granting a Conditional Use Certificate, the BZA must give due 
regard to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and buildings and after 
determining that the proposed use will not be of a substantial detriment to 
adjoining properties. 

3.4.6.3. The issuance of a conditional use permit is discretionary on the part of the 
BZA under the provisions of the Beavercreek Township Zoning Resolution. 

3.4.6.4. Conditions 
3.4.6.4.1. The BZA shall impose such requirements and conditions, in 

addition to those required by the Resolution, as it deems necessary. 
3.4.7. The Board may call upon the Township departments for assistance in the 

performance of its duties. 
 

3.5. State Law Claims 
 

3.5.1. BZA members are afforded statutory immunity from lawsuits in state courts 
consistent with Ohio Revised Code Chapter 2744, unless: 

8 of 70

8 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
6 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

3.5.1.1. The member’s conduct is deemed to be manifestly outside the scope of  
his/her official responsibilities; 

3.5.1.2.  The member’s acts or omissions were with malicious purpose, in bad 
faith, or in a wanton or reckless manner. 

3.5.2. If a BZA member is sued under state law as a result of conduct or participation as 
a member of the BZA, the Township will defend him or her consistent with the 
requirements of Ohio Revised Code Chapter 2744. 

3.5.3. Additionally, the Township shall indemnify and hold BZA members harmless in 
the amount of any judgment, other than a judgment for punitive or exemplary 
damages, that is obtained against them in a state court consistent with Ohio Revised 
Code Chapter 2744. 
 

3.6. Federal Law Claims 
 

3.6.1.1.1.1.3.6.1. 42 U.S.C. §1983 creates a remedy for individuals who have been 
deprived of their constitutional rights under color of law. Under 42 U.S.C. §1983 
any person who, under the color of state or local law deprives another person or 
entity of any of the rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the U.S. 
Constitution and laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, in 
equity, or other proper proceeding.  

3.6.2. BZA members are acting “under the color of law” when they consider matters 
brought before them. 

3.6.3. Section 1983 does not require that a BZA member acted willfully, or with specific 
intent, to violate a person’s federally protected rights. Nor does it require a claimant 
to prove that a BZA member abused his/her governmental power. 

3.6.4. The statutory immunity which BZA members may be afforded under state law 
does not apply to lawsuits which may be filed against them under federal law. 
However, there are circumstances in which a member of the BZA may be entitled to 
invoke qualified immunity under federal law. 
 

3.6.5. Applicability of Ohio Ethics Laws to BZA 
 

3.6.5.1.  BZA members are “public officials” as that term is defined in the Ohio 
Ethics Law, R.C. 102.01 (B). 

3.6.5.2. The Board of Zoning Appeals is a “public agency” as that term is defined 
in the Ohio Ethics Law, R.C. 102.01 (C). 
 

3.6.6. Applicability of Ohio Criminal Code to BZA 
 

3.6.6.1. BZA members are “public officials” and “public servants” as those terms 
are defined in the Ohio Criminal Code, R.C. 2921.01 (A). 

3.6.6.2. As “public officials” and “public servants” BZA members are prohibited 
from doing certain acts which are set forth in R.C. 2921.42, 2921.421 and 
2921.43. 
 

3.6.7. Violations of the Ohio Ethics Law and Ohio Criminal Code can result in civil and 
criminal proceedings. 

Formatted

9 of 70

9 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
7 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

3.6.7.1.1. Violations of the Ohio Ethics Code can be misdemeanors of the 
first or fourth degree. 

3.6.7.1.2. A violation of the Ohio Criminal Code can be a misdemeanor or a 
felony depending upon the nature of the offense. 

3.6.8. The Ohio Ethics Commission publishes information sheets to provide guidance 
for public officials. These information sheets are available on the Internet. Those 
with the most applicability are: 

3.6.8.1. Property Matters Affecting Family Members (#9) 
3.6.8.2. Property Matters Affecting a Public Official or Employee (#8) 
3.6.8.3. Accepting Gifts, Meals, Entertainment, or other Things of Value (#7) 

 
 

3.7. By acting openly, fairly, and treating all individuals and entities equally, it is unlikely 
that BZA members will be confronted with any claims being made against them as a 
volunteer member of the board or commission to which they have been appointed. 

 
4. Important and Applicable Statutes 

 
4.1.1. Members appointed by the Board of Trustees of Beavercreek Township to serve 

on a public board or commission, must be familiar with not only the laws and 
regulations which specifically govern the board or commission on which  they 
serve, but other statutes which apply to all individuals serving within the public 
domain. The following is a brief outline of three of those laws. Questions members 
may have regarding the specifics of each law can be directed to their staff liaison. 
 

5. Ohio Sunshine Law (R.C. 121.22) 
 
5.1. Each board, commission, committee, subcommittee, agency, authority or similar 

decision making body to which Board and Commission members have been appointed 
by the Board of Trustees is considered to be a “public body” under the Ohio Sunshine 
Law. (Section 122.22 of the Ohio Revised Code). This law requires that they deliberate, 
discuss, and conduct all official business in open meetings. There are only a few limited 
situations when a "public body" may adjourn into executive session to discuss matters 
privately. They must comply with the provisions of the Ohio Sunshine Law when the 
following three characteristics are present: 

5.1.1. A prearranged gathering; 
5.1.2. Attendance by a majority of the members of the "public body"; 
5.1.3. The purpose of the gathering is for conducting, transacting, deliberating, or 

discussing public business. 
 

5.2. When these three characteristics are present  Board and Commission members MUST do 
the following: 

5.2.1.  Conduct meetings in a venue which is open to the public. Generally, this requires 
that the meeting must be held in a public meeting place within the Township; 

5.2.2. Give proper notice of the meeting pursuant to rules adopted by the board or 
commission. Notice must be given to the news media which has requested 

10 of 70

10 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
8 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

notification and any person who has requested reasonable advance notification of all 
meetings; 

5.2.3. Maintain full and accurate minutes.  These minutes must state sufficient facts to 
permit the public to understand and appreciate the rationale behind the public 
body’s decision. All such minutes must be prepared promptly, filed with the 
appropriate party and maintained indefinitely. 
 

5.3. If they fail to fulfill these requirements,  Board and Commission members could be 
subject to the consequences set forth under Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22. 

5.3.1.    
5.3.2.5.3.1. Any resolution, rule or formal action of any kind taken during an illegal 

meeting may be declared to be invalid. For purposes of the statute, a “formal action” 
occurs by any mechanism by which any member of the group makes their views 
known about a matter pending before them. 
 

6. Public Records Act (Ohio Revised Code Chapter 149) 
 
6.1. The Board of Trustees, its employees, as well as the Board of Zoning Appeals and the 

Zoning Commission, are required to comply with the Public Records Act. However, so 
as to promote the purpose of that law, which is to allow broad access to records of public 
offices, the Board of Trustees encourages all the other groups which it may create to 
comply with the provisions of the Act. 
 

6.2. Generally, the Public Records Act requires that all public records be available for 
inspection upon request by any person. For purposes of the statute a public record is any 
item kept by a public office that (1) is stored on a fixed medium, (2) created, received, or 
sent under the jurisdiction of a public office and (3) documents the organization, 
functions, policies, decisions, procedures, operations, or other activities of the office. 

 
6.3. A copy of the Township’s Public Records Policy is available on the Township website 

and as part of the Beavercreek Township Policy and Procedures Manual. 
 

7. Ohio Ethics Law (Chapter 102 and Revised Code Sections 2921.43 and 2921.43)  
 
7.1. The Ohio Public Ethics Law pertains to any person who is elected or appointed to an 

office or is an employee of a department, division, board, commission, authority, bureau, 
or other instrumentality of the Township. 
 

7.2. Generally, the Ohio Ethics laws prohibit a person who is subject to the laws from 
participating in matters that involve his/her own financial interest or those of his/her 
family or business associates. The following types of conduct are prohibited or restricted 
by the Ohio Ethics Laws: 

 
7.2.1. Misuse of Official Position. Persons may not use or authorize the use of their 

public position to benefit themselves or others in circumstances that create a conflict 
of interest where their objectivity could be impaired. Such  persons must avoid any 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.85",  No bullets or
numbering

11 of 70

11 of 70



 

Beavercreek Township 
9 of 9 

Board and Commission Policy 

 
 

situation in which they might gain personally as a result of the decision they make 
or influence as a public servant; 

7.2.2. Representation Before Agency on Which one Served. Present or former public 
officials are prohibited from representing anyone before any public agency, 
including  their former employer, on any matter in which they personally 
participated in their official capacity; 

7.2.3. Sale of Goods and Services to and Representation of Clients Before Public 
Agencies. Public officials or employees are prohibited from receiving compensation, 
other than from  their own public agency, for services rendered in a matter before 
any agency of the governmental entity on which  they serve; 

7.2.4. Disclosure of Confidential Information. Both present and former public officials 
are prohibited from disclosing or using any information appropriately designated by 
law as confidential; 

7.2.5. Participation in Public Contracts and Public Investments. Public employees or 
officials are prohibited from having a financial or fiduciary interest in a public 
contract. Specifically, such persons are prohibited from authorizing, voting or 
otherwise using the authority or influence of their office to secure approval of a 
public contract in which the officials, family members or business associates have 
an interest.  

7.2.6. Soliciting or Receiving Improper Compensation. Public officials are prohibited 
from receiving compensation, in addition to that paid by their public agency, for 
performing their official duties. 
 

7.3. These are just GENERAL STATEMENTS and are not intended to reflect all of the 
prohibitions imposed by the Ohio Ethics Laws. If Board and Commission members have 
any questions or concerns regarding their participation on any board or commission, or 
their participation on any matter which may come before them as a member of any 
township board or commission, they must IMMEDIATELY notify their staff liaison. In 
appropriate circumstances, advisory opinions can be obtained from the Ohio Ethics 
Commission. 
 

7.4. A violation of the Ohio Ethics Law can result in severe penalties. Any violation of any 
provision of the Ohio Ethics Laws constitutes a criminal offense. Most of the provisions, 
including conflict of interest prohibitions, are first degree misdemeanors punishable by a 
maximum fine of $1,000.00, a maximum prison term of six (6) months, or both. 
However, violations of other provisions of the law can result in more severe punishment 
with fines of up to $2,500.00 and a prison term of eighteen (18) months, or both. 

 
7.5. Periodically, Beavercreek Township offers training sessions on Ohio’s Ethics Laws and 

has videos on this topic. Information concerning such training will be provided at time of 
appointment. Each board or commission member is strongly encouraged to attend these 
training sessions. Additionally, information will be provided when available. 

12 of 70

12 of 70



 

 

 

BEAVERCREEK  

 

 

Trustees - Carol Graff 

          Tom Kretz 

Jeff Roberts 

 

             Fiscal Officer - Christy L. Ahrens 

 

                    Administrator - J. Alexander Zaharieff 

 

                                   

     TOWNSHIP 
851 Orchard Lane 

Beavercreek, Ohio 45434-7158 

(937) 429-4472 

(937) 429-5678 Fax 

 

Dear Board or Commission Member: 

 

Congratulations on your appointment to a Board or Commission for Beavercreek Township. Your 

willingness to volunteer your services is greatly appreciated. 

 

You have been appointed by the Board of Trustees to one of the groups created by the 

Ohio Revised Code or by the Board of Trustees. As an appointee, you have certain duties and 

responsibilities which are unique to the group to which you have been appointed. 

You are also required to follow the provision of the Ohio Revised Code which may be applicable to 

your Board or Commission and to abide by the Ohio Ethics Laws. To assist you in understanding 

what those duties and responsibilities may be and to make you aware of the applicable provisions of 

the Ohio Revised Code which pertain to your appointment, this manual has been prepared for you 

review. 

 

You are encouraged to read this manual and to become acquainted with its contents. By its very 

nature, this manual cannot be totally comprehensive or address all possible situations. For this 

reason, if you have any questions, contact your staff liaison or the Township Administrator. 

 

From time to time, it may become necessary for this manual to be amended to reflect changes in the 

law or the Township’s operating procedure. The Township reserves the right to make those changes 

as necessary and will do so when required.  

 

We look forward to your service to the Township. Thank you again for your willingness to serve our 

community! 

 

 

THE BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES: 

 

Carol Graff Tom Kretz Jeff Roberts 

13 of 70

13 of 70



 

 

Agreement for Township Services 
 
This is an Agreement by and between the Board of Trustees of Beavercreek Township, Greene County, 
Ohio, 851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434 ("Beavercreek Township") and The Country Club of 
the North ("CCN").  

 
Whereas, CCN is a private residential community located within Beavercreek Township; and 
 
Whereas, Beavercreek Township and CCN desire to enter into a Public/Private Partnership; and  
 
Whereas, Beavercreek Township can provide services which the Trustees of Beavercreek Township are 
willing to make available to CCN; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES CONTAINED HEREIN, THE 
PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HERBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1 TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
 In the event that CCN requests the Township provide services and the Township determines that 
it has the capacity and ability to provide such services, said services will be provided on the following 
terms: 
 

1. Beavercreek Township will include CCN in the yearly co-operative bid for de-icing materials, and 
CCN agrees to pay the bid price for all anticipated materials need for the private community, 
that are ordered on their behalf, as part of the bid.  

 
2. Beavercreek Township will included CCN in the yearly co-operative bid for roadway resurfacing 

as requested by CCN, and CCN agrees to pay for all work performed within the private 
community, as part of the resurfacing bid.  
 

3. At the request of CCN’s Director of Community Services, Beavercreek Township will provide an 
annual roadway survey and provide recommendations to CCN at no charge to CCN. 
 

4. At the request of CCN’s Director of Community Services, Beavercreek Township will provide sign 
retro-reflectivity testing within CCN and provided the test results at no charge.  
 

5. The Director of Community Services for CCN may request services by Beavercreek Township 
outside of this agreement, such services will be provided at the discretion of Beavercreek 
Township based upon the available time and materials for such services and at a mutually 
agreed upon cost. .  Under no circumstances is Beavercreek Township obligated to provide such 
additional services to CCN under this agreement. 
  

5.6. CCN recognizes and acknowledges that Beavercreek Township is entitled to any applicable 
statutory immunities for the services provided by it.  

  

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", 

No bullets or numbering

14 of 70

14 of 70



 

 

 

SECTION 2 AUTHORIZATION 
 

1. The Requests set forth in this Agreement may be made in writing, fax or email between the 
Township Administrator and the Director of Community Services of CCN or their designees. 
 

 
SECTION 3 DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

1. Effective Date of this Agreement shall be April 1125, 2016. This Agreement will 
automatically renew every fourth year beginning January 1, 2020.  However, this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party, for any reason or no reason upon giving ninety (90) days 
written notice to the other party.  

 

SECTION 4 PAYMENT 
 

1. Payment for services provided will be made to the Township or it designee upon the 
submission of an invoice by Beavercreek Township to CCN which shall set forth such 
information as is necessary to identify the product and/or services and calculations 
therefore. Payment shall be made within 30 days of the receipt of said statement. 

 
 
 
For County Club of the North    Beavercreek Township 
Greene County, Ohio     Greene County, Ohio  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    ________________________ 
Director of Community Services    Township Administrator 

15 of 70

15 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/13/2016 14:27:33 2016-00011511 911 Hang Up

04/15/2016 19:36:17 2016-00011724 911 Hang Up

Type Totals: 2

04/13/2016 16:16:21 2016-00011524 Alarm - Business/Bank

04/14/2016 16:21:02 2016-00011604 Alarm - Business/Bank

04/14/2016 18:26:47 2016-00011607 Alarm - Business/Bank

Type Totals: 3

04/13/2016 08:47:06 2016-00011480 Alarm - Holdup/Panic

04/14/2016 10:25:15 2016-00011575 Alarm - Holdup/Panic

Type Totals: 2

04/07/2016 11:20:07 2016-00010954 Alarm - Residential

04/07/2016 14:38:33 2016-00010972 Alarm - Residential

04/08/2016 13:58:18 2016-00011050 Alarm - Residential

04/15/2016 18:05:25 2016-00011717 Alarm - Residential

04/16/2016 10:23:56 2016-00011763 Alarm - Residential

04/16/2016 17:26:06 2016-00011797 Alarm - Residential

04/18/2016 09:55:41 2016-00011920 Alarm - Residential

Type Totals: 7

04/14/2016 19:50:46 2016-00011614 Animal Complaint

Type Totals: 1

04/15/2016 07:53:42 2016-00011657 Arson

Type Totals: 1

04/12/2016 09:26:00 2016-00011392 Assist

04/16/2016 11:48:03 2016-00011768 Assist

04/20/2016 03:20:49 2016-00012114 Assist

Type Totals: 3

04/17/2016 02:00:55 2016-00011822 Burglary

Type Totals: 1

04/06/2016 23:12:10 2016-00010880 Business Check

04/07/2016 00:00:16 2016-00010886 Business Check

04/07/2016 00:11:19 2016-00010888 Business Check

04/07/2016 03:38:46 2016-00010912 Business Check

04/07/2016 04:23:37 2016-00010921 Business Check

16 of 70

16 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/07/2016 04:27:18 2016-00010922 Business Check

04/07/2016 11:13:53 2016-00010951 Business Check

04/08/2016 01:42:57 2016-00011014 Business Check

04/11/2016 21:45:02 2016-00011331 Business Check

04/11/2016 22:02:50 2016-00011333 Business Check

04/12/2016 00:26:05 2016-00011350 Business Check

04/12/2016 00:35:52 2016-00011351 Business Check

04/12/2016 01:02:28 2016-00011354 Business Check

04/12/2016 08:00:29 2016-00011375 Business Check

04/13/2016 02:53:18 2016-00011449 Business Check

04/13/2016 02:55:24 2016-00011450 Business Check

04/13/2016 03:08:01 2016-00011452 Business Check

04/16/2016 00:12:10 2016-00011739 Business Check

04/17/2016 02:34:50 2016-00011824 Business Check

04/17/2016 02:38:09 2016-00011825 Business Check

04/18/2016 01:38:26 2016-00011879 Business Check

04/18/2016 01:43:38 2016-00011883 Business Check

04/18/2016 01:53:26 2016-00011888 Business Check

04/18/2016 02:31:32 2016-00011891 Business Check

04/20/2016 00:06:07 2016-00012095 Business Check

04/20/2016 09:33:31 2016-00012144 Business Check

Type Totals: 26

04/15/2016 14:24:16 2016-00011705 Civil Complaint

Type Totals: 1

04/12/2016 09:23:42 2016-00011391 Civil Other

Type Totals: 1

04/14/2016 19:35:01 2016-00011613 Community Policing

Type Totals: 1

04/11/2016 11:55:01 2016-00011297 Crash - Assist Only

04/12/2016 13:10:41 2016-00011414 Crash - Assist Only

04/13/2016 03:06:56 2016-00011453 Crash - Assist Only

04/18/2016 15:11:33 2016-00011935 Crash - Assist Only

04/18/2016 17:21:14 2016-00011944 Crash - Assist Only

17 of 70

17 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/18/2016 21:43:23 2016-00011958 Crash - Assist Only

Type Totals: 6

04/15/2016 18:33:38 2016-00011718 Crash - Personal  Injury

Type Totals: 1

04/07/2016 00:49:36 2016-00010892 Crash - Property Damage

04/09/2016 04:39:31 2016-00011129 Crash - Property Damage

04/18/2016 16:30:52 2016-00011943 Crash - Property Damage

Type Totals: 3

04/07/2016 22:29:39 2016-00010998 Crash - Unknown Injuries

Type Totals: 1

04/16/2016 07:58:04 2016-00011755 Criminal Damaging

Type Totals: 1

04/06/2016 11:23:43 2016-00010831 Detail - Other

Type Totals: 1

04/06/2016 08:10:58 2016-00010803 Detail - School

04/07/2016 08:31:47 2016-00010934 Detail - School

04/07/2016 13:58:43 2016-00010967 Detail - School

04/11/2016 07:34:06 2016-00011275 Detail - School

04/11/2016 13:55:40 2016-00011305 Detail - School

04/12/2016 07:45:31 2016-00011372 Detail - School

04/12/2016 08:06:53 2016-00011378 Detail - School

04/15/2016 07:30:33 2016-00011651 Detail - School

04/20/2016 07:33:51 2016-00012121 Detail - School

04/20/2016 15:55:27 2016-00012205 Detail - School

Type Totals: 10

04/07/2016 19:10:23 2016-00010990 Disabled Vehicle

04/11/2016 02:46:06 2016-00011272 Disabled Vehicle

04/11/2016 17:06:58 2016-00011317 Disabled Vehicle

04/15/2016 01:37:56 2016-00011640 Disabled Vehicle

04/18/2016 20:29:12 2016-00011954 Disabled Vehicle

04/20/2016 00:02:44 2016-00012093 Disabled Vehicle

Type Totals: 6

04/09/2016 18:50:36 2016-00011167 Disturbance

18 of 70

18 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

Type Totals: 1

04/06/2016 21:31:53 2016-00010872 Extra Patrol

04/06/2016 21:52:20 2016-00010873 Extra Patrol

04/06/2016 22:11:21 2016-00010875 Extra Patrol

04/06/2016 23:02:36 2016-00010879 Extra Patrol

04/07/2016 11:05:39 2016-00010949 Extra Patrol

04/07/2016 23:29:11 2016-00011000 Extra Patrol

04/08/2016 01:07:26 2016-00011009 Extra Patrol

04/08/2016 02:01:11 2016-00011016 Extra Patrol

04/08/2016 02:12:55 2016-00011017 Extra Patrol

04/08/2016 02:23:56 2016-00011018 Extra Patrol

04/08/2016 03:27:04 2016-00011020 Extra Patrol

04/12/2016 07:57:47 2016-00011374 Extra Patrol

04/12/2016 09:00:10 2016-00011388 Extra Patrol

04/14/2016 19:05:10 2016-00011610 Extra Patrol

04/16/2016 20:56:39 2016-00011801 Extra Patrol

04/18/2016 08:40:10 2016-00011914 Extra Patrol

04/18/2016 12:52:42 2016-00011925 Extra Patrol

04/19/2016 10:59:25 2016-00012015 Extra Patrol

04/19/2016 11:30:29 2016-00012020 Extra Patrol

04/19/2016 19:36:51 2016-00012070 Extra Patrol

04/20/2016 07:52:55 2016-00012126 Extra Patrol

Type Totals: 21

04/17/2016 14:55:58 2016-00011861 Follow Up

04/19/2016 11:12:31 2016-00012016 Follow Up

Type Totals: 2

04/06/2016 11:25:51 2016-00010834 Found Property

Type Totals: 1

04/07/2016 13:34:31 2016-00010966 Harrassment

Type Totals: 1

04/07/2016 03:32:16 2016-00010909 House Check

04/07/2016 03:34:52 2016-00010910 House Check

04/08/2016 01:35:14 2016-00011012 House Check

19 of 70

19 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/08/2016 01:38:09 2016-00011013 House Check

04/18/2016 14:37:31 2016-00011931 House Check

04/19/2016 15:31:42 2016-00012043 House Check

04/19/2016 15:34:01 2016-00012045 House Check

04/19/2016 15:38:21 2016-00012047 House Check

Type Totals: 8

04/15/2016 08:51:03 2016-00011671 Miscellaneous

Type Totals: 1

04/15/2016 20:21:28 2016-00011727 Overdose

Type Totals: 1

04/15/2016 08:11:14 2016-00011663 Parking Violation

Type Totals: 1

04/07/2016 09:17:08 2016-00010940 Radar/Lidar Post

04/11/2016 10:50:59 2016-00011289 Radar/Lidar Post

04/16/2016 13:11:18 2016-00011774 Radar/Lidar Post

04/20/2016 12:32:57 2016-00012172 Radar/Lidar Post

Type Totals: 4

04/17/2016 20:45:58 2016-00011870 Request Officer

04/18/2016 20:12:36 2016-00011953 Request Officer

Type Totals: 2

04/15/2016 20:25:47 2016-00011728 Solicitor

Type Totals: 1

04/07/2016 21:51:23 2016-00010996 Street / Road Obstruction

04/13/2016 06:24:05 2016-00011464 Street / Road Obstruction

04/20/2016 14:36:12 2016-00012194 Street / Road Obstruction

04/20/2016 15:58:27 2016-00012206 Street / Road Obstruction

Type Totals: 4

04/12/2016 23:05:30 2016-00011444 Suicide Attempt / Suicidal Subj

Type Totals: 1

04/11/2016 22:23:04 2016-00011338 Suspicious Person

04/14/2016 06:38:00 2016-00011555 Suspicious Person

04/15/2016 09:58:28 2016-00011677 Suspicious Person

Type Totals: 3

20 of 70

20 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/06/2016 14:35:29 2016-00010853 Suspicious Vehicle

04/07/2016 19:32:40 2016-00010991 Suspicious Vehicle

04/20/2016 00:32:03 2016-00012102 Suspicious Vehicle

04/20/2016 12:19:45 2016-00012168 Suspicious Vehicle

Type Totals: 4

04/08/2016 17:26:06 2016-00011067 Theft

04/12/2016 11:05:07 2016-00011410 Theft

04/14/2016 07:53:55 2016-00011560 Theft

04/16/2016 16:28:10 2016-00011791 Theft

04/20/2016 15:07:25 2016-00012200 Theft

Type Totals: 5

04/12/2016 07:50:51 2016-00011373 Traffic Complaint

04/13/2016 15:58:16 2016-00011522 Traffic Complaint

04/15/2016 23:19:00 2016-00011734 Traffic Complaint

04/16/2016 00:38:48 2016-00011745 Traffic Complaint

04/16/2016 16:53:15 2016-00011796 Traffic Complaint

04/18/2016 12:37:17 2016-00011924 Traffic Complaint

Type Totals: 6

04/06/2016 08:19:06 2016-00010806 Traffic Stop

04/06/2016 09:08:35 2016-00010814 Traffic Stop

04/06/2016 09:41:40 2016-00010818 Traffic Stop

04/06/2016 12:21:05 2016-00010842 Traffic Stop

04/07/2016 11:58:51 2016-00010958 Traffic Stop

04/07/2016 12:35:57 2016-00010961 Traffic Stop

04/07/2016 12:43:12 2016-00010962 Traffic Stop

04/08/2016 23:50:03 2016-00011098 Traffic Stop

04/09/2016 02:02:58 2016-00011116 Traffic Stop

04/11/2016 22:11:48 2016-00011336 Traffic Stop

04/12/2016 08:16:48 2016-00011380 Traffic Stop

04/12/2016 11:05:20 2016-00011406 Traffic Stop

04/18/2016 15:47:08 2016-00011938 Traffic Stop

04/18/2016 19:50:22 2016-00011947 Traffic Stop

04/19/2016 10:46:13 2016-00012013 Traffic Stop

21 of 70

21 of 70



04-25-2016

Biweekly Report

Incident Date And Time Incident Number Incident Type

04/19/2016 11:51:57 2016-00012018 Traffic Stop

04/19/2016 12:00:43 2016-00012021 Traffic Stop

04/19/2016 12:54:30 2016-00012029 Traffic Stop

04/20/2016 12:40:40 2016-00012173 Traffic Stop

04/20/2016 12:56:15 2016-00012179 Traffic Stop

Type Totals: 20

04/06/2016 23:16:00 2016-00010884 Welfare Check

Type Totals: 1

22 of 70

22 of 70



23 of 70

23 of 70



24 of 70

24 of 70



25 of 70

25 of 70



26 of 70

26 of 70



27 of 70

27 of 70



28 of 70

28 of 70



29 of 70

29 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 

 

 1 

BI-WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

April 25, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

JOB TASKS: 
 

1. 0 Workers’ Compensation claims for 2016 

7 claims filed in 2015 

 

2. Prepare bi-weekly report  

 

3. Review bills 

 

4. Prepare proposals for Xenia Township 

 

5. Work on hiring 

 

6. Work on return to work  

 

7.  Review personnel and medical files from the Finance Office 

 

8. Work on public records’ requests 

 

9. Work on off-duty injury; review NFPA 1582  

 

10. Work onBWC group rating program 

 

11. Review subpoenas; send to pertinent employees 

 

12. Work with Broker on renewal 

 

13.  Work on employee issue  

 

14. Work on youthworks program for FD 

 

15. Work on issues pertaining to Form Fire 

 

16.  Schedule policy training and evaluations 

 

17. Work on job descriptions 

30 of 70

30 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 

 

 2 

 

18. Insurance additions/removeals 

 

19. Review fact finder panel; research individuals contained therein for Xenia Township 

 

 

 

MEETINGS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

 

Meet with the TA on multiple issues 

Meet with Chief VandenBos on multiple issues 

Attend staff meeting 

Meeting with reps from Youth Works; meeting with Chief VandenBos on same 

Meetings with Compmanagment on BWC discount program 

Meeting with Alan Stock on issues pertaining to Xenia Township 

Attend Labor/Management meeting 

 

 

BWC Group Rating Program: 

 

I have attached information from CareWorksComp, our current provider, as well as our potential 

second option, Comp Management. I will discuss both in more detail on Monday. 

 

 

31 of 70

31 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

1 

 

BI-WEEKLY REPORT 

FOR THE TRUSTEES MEETING OF MONDAY, APRIL 25, 2016 

ACTIVITY FROM THU, APRIL 7, 2016 THROUGH WED, APRIL 20, 2016 

PERMITS:  Seven permits for single-family dwellings were issued in this period. Other 

permits issued were for two decks, one fence, two residential additions and one sign. Last 

year, we did not issue the 38th house permit until June 11. This year to date we have a 

138% increase over 2015 in single-family dwelling permits (38 vs. 16), and a 120% increase 

in total Zoning actions (101 vs. 46), not counting Parks Permits.   

The following chart compares numbers of Zoning Permits issued for the last six years. 

Numbers through 2015 are totals for each year. 2016 numbers are year-to-date, through 

April 20. The revenue line is the amount generated by Zoning Department fees. 

 

PENDING: Survey work is under way for the re-zoning of the Zinck property by Ohio Univ. 

Construction drawings are under review for Bexley Hills Sec. 3B and River Reserve Sec. 1.  

One Home Occupation Permit application is under review   

Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Single family dwellings 62 37 47 26 61 96 38

Driveways 32 22 32 27 57 94 36

Additions 4 9 1 3 10 5 4

Fences 16 19 14 20 22 13 2

Pools (including fence) 2 4 8 11 5 7 1

Signs 6 7 7 4 9 7 3

Rights of Way 3 0 7 1 2 3 3

Accessory Decks & Covered Patio 14 16 26 15 8 14 1

Accessory Structures 13 13 14 14 13 15 5

Commercial Structures 1 0 7 2 0 0

Commercial Addition 2 0 2 1 1 2

Commercial Accessory Structures  1 0 1 2 5 2

Temporary Tents  Permits 13 13 13 13 14 12 2

Exemption Certificate 0 1 2 3 2 6

Use Compliance Certificates 1 2 1 1 1 3

Cell Tower Co-location 0 0 0 0 2 0

Temporary Use Permits (Real Estate Sales)    0 0 0 0 2 0

Political Signs 1 5 2 19 4 7 6

Parks Permits 0 0 0 0 0 18 27

Total 171 148 184 162 218 304 128

Revenue $14,274.80 $24,094.65 $15,843.80 $11,735.00 $15,910.00 $29,380.00 13,510.00$ 

32 of 70

32 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

2 

 

REVENUE PROJECTIONS 

The following chart shows estimated additional Township revenue generated by new home 

construction, by Fund. For 2010 through 2015 the amounts are based on final year-end 

Zoning Permit totals. The numbers for this year are year-to-date based on permits issued 

through 04-20-16, using 2014 Tax Levy rates and an estimated average NEW HOME 

property value of $300,000. Note: Receipt of revenues will follow two years after they are 

generated, e.g. revenue generated in 2016 will be disbursed to the Township in 2018. 

 

 

The following graph is simply an illustration of the revenue data in the chart above. 

 

Fund 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

General 3,202.50                    1,995.00           2,467.50               1,365.00          3,150.00      5,040.00      1,995.00    

Road 20,391.48                  12,702.89         15,711.47             8,691.45          20,057.20    32,091.51    12,702.89 

Fire 30,701.78                  19,125.70         23,655.47             13,086.01       30,198.48    48,317.56    19,125.70 

Police 5,676.65                    3,536.27           4,373.81               2,419.56          5,583.59      8,933.74      3,536.27    

Total 59,972.42                  37,359.87         46,208.26             25,562.01       58,989.26    94,382.82    37,359.87 

33 of 70

33 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

3 

 

MEETINGS/OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

1. Responded to follow-up inquiries re: Ohio University/Russ Research Center strategic 

planning effort, including conversations with OU CFO and planning and legal 

consultants.  

2. Consulted with TA, Zoning staff and HR re: department re-organization and job 

descriptions. 

3. Consulted with RPCC staff re: Bexley Hills Sec. 3B. 

4. Continued formal and informal training of Zoning Assistant for assumption of new 

duties (Novak recommendation). 

5. Issued one Zoning Permit. 

6. Established stakeholders’ mtg. to discuss Bexley Hills Emergency Access Drive 

issues; mtg. to take place 04-21-16. 

7. Attended Safe Routes to School planning Committee mtg. 04-07-16. 

8. Attended meeting of Beavercreek Management Advisory Group (BMAG), convened 

by GC Parks and Trails to discuss and make recommendations for the protection of 

the Beaver Creek(s) watershed 04-07-16. 

9. Attended Zoning Commission mtg. at which a new chair and vice-chair were elected 

04-07-16. 

10. Met with developer of Wood Ridge to review initial concept for development of 

adjacent parcel 04-08-16. 

11. Attended Trustees regular meeting 04-11-16. 

12. With Mr. Parks, met with representatives of the Parks District an the Beavercreek 

Historical Society to discuss signage at 1981 Dayton-Xenia Rd. 04-12-16. 

13. With Ms. Brown, attended meeting at RPCC to open discussion of the revision of the 

GC Subdivision Regulations 04-14-16. 

14. Attended MVRPC Annual Spring Dinner/Awards ceremony 04-14-16. 

15. Met with TA on site at Bexley Hills Sec. 3A to discuss Emergency Access Drive 

issues 04-15-16. 

16. Consulted with developer of Bexley Hills re: Emergency Access issues 04-18-16. 

17. Attended mtg. of Planning Committee for Miami Valley Cycling Summit to take place 

at WSU on May 5, 2017; 04-20-16. 

Following are some highlights of additional Zoning tasks performed by Laurie Brown, 
Zoning Assistant (tasks outside her job description) 

 Issued 19 Zoning permits, (including 7 driveway permits). 

 Issued 2 Parks Permits. 

 Responded to multiple zoning inquiries, advised applicant for a Variance and 

applicant for Home Occupation Permit. 

(cont.) 

34 of 70

34 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

4 

 Updated and distributed minutes of proceedings of the Safe Routes to School 

Committee. 

 Wrote and arranged for publication of Public Hearing Notice.  

 Assisted with preparation of Zoning Department bi-weekly report. 

 Consulted with ZA, TA, HR Manager & IT Manager re: Zoning Dept. reorganization. 

 Attended Safe Routes to School planning Committee mtg. 04-07-16. 

 Attended RPCC planning meeting for revision of GC Subdivision Regs. 04-14-16. 

 

BUILD-OUT DATA 
 

The following chart shows build-out percentages and remaining shovel-ready home sites, by 

subdivision. This chart is a work-in-progress – we will continually update it according to 

available data, and will perform field checks as time allows.  

 

PUD # Homes Approved  Completed % CompletedShovel Ready Sites

Spring Meadows 109 84 71% 25

Spring Ridge 111 92 77% 19

The Conservancy 62 59 95% 3

Rolling Meadows 24 23 96% 1

Dorset Downs 37 32 86% 5

Nathaniel's Grove 475 0 0% 0

Wolf Ridge 14 13 93% 1

Stonehill Village

Spindletop 156 142 91% 14

Liberty Hill 162 137 85% 25

Claiborne Greens 166 45 27% 23

The Narrows 26 25 96% 1

River West 

Scarborough 75 13 17% 25

Bexley Hills 77 51 66% 16

River Reserve 244 0 0% 0

Stone Farm Est. 26 25 96% 1

Country Club of the North 311 241 77% 70

Hunters' Pointe 344 344 100% 0

Hickory Hollow Est. 44 44 100% 0

Wood Ridge Est. 44 5 11% 39

Arlington/The Colony 154 140 91% 14

Woodland Hills Estates 45 44 98% 1

Beaver Hills Estates 53 53 100% 0

Windemere 77 77 100% 0

Totals 2836 1689 60% 283

35 of 70

35 of 70



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 306.5049        Fax: (937) 426-8780 
 

Bi-Weekly Report for 

April 25, 2016  

Regular Board of Trustees’ Meeting 

(Report period 08 – 21 Apr 16) 

 

Trustees, 

 

The following is a brief synopsis of the past two weeks in the IT department.  I will be 

present to answer any questions or concerns you may have.   

 

IT Projects/Management: 

 Upgrade Citrix environment (in-work) 

o Still working with lead Engineers...Submitted more log files to them 

 They are writing script to improve performance 

o Need to pull more information from our SAN via network analyzer. This 

has to be installed by EMC and there is a ticket in the queue.  

o Hope to have more to brief on meeting Monday. 

 Research and deploy video conferencing between all Fire Stations (on hold for 

Citrix Migration) 

o Looks like WebEx may be best solution for our environment, but need a 

few more test and meeting with fire department to go over findings 

 Equipment Inventory, Surplus (Gov Deals)  and Repurpose IT equipment (hold) 

 Hot/Warm site planning, station 64(hold) 

Network Administration: 

 Patched /Rebooted all servers physical/virtual 

 Social Media—Website,  Facebook, Twitter, YouTube 

o Website 

 Posted Historical Society Open House Event 

o YouTube 

 Posted 11 Apr Regular Meeting 

o Facebook/Twitter—Links posted 

 Active Directory (User/Group account management) 

o Created Account for new Firefighter 

o Unlocked accounts 

o Added/Deleted users To/From Security Groups.  

 Verified Backups are current and running. 

 Reviewed Span/Web filters 

o Deleted/Whitelisted domains as appropriate  

36 of 70

36 of 70



 2 

Meetings: 

 Department Heads meeting 

Training: 

 None this period 

Miscellaneous / Outages: 

 Citrix Desktops not available 

o Isolated to Desktop Controller not registering on the Domain Controller 

 Main Phone line down at Maintenance Facility 

o Line was inadvertently disconnected while relocating Fax and Alarm lines. 

Connection restored 

 Worked on Public Records Requests 

Awareness Items: 

 

Purchases: 

 Barracuda Instant Replacement  

 Layer 3 switch (still on backorder) 

 

I look forward to meeting with you at the 25 Apr meeting and answering any 

questions/concerns you may have on the preceding information. In the meantime, if you 

have any questions you can contact me via email or my cell @ 937.212.1379 

 

 

Jeff Terry | Information Technology 

Beavercreek Township 

937.306.5049 

 

37 of 70

37 of 70



38 of 70

38 of 70



39 of 70

39 of 70



40 of 70

40 of 70



41 of 70

41 of 70



42 of 70

42 of 70



43 of 70

43 of 70



44 of 70

44 of 70



45 of 70

45 of 70



46 of 70

46 of 70



47 of 70

47 of 70



48 of 70

48 of 70



49 of 70

49 of 70



50 of 70

50 of 70



51 of 70

51 of 70



52 of 70

52 of 70



53 of 70

53 of 70



54 of 70

54 of 70



55 of 70

55 of 70



56 of 70

56 of 70



57 of 70

57 of 70



58 of 70

58 of 70



59 of 70

59 of 70



60 of 70

60 of 70



61 of 70

61 of 70



62 of 70

62 of 70



63 of 70

63 of 70



64 of 70

64 of 70



65 of 70

65 of 70



1 / 5 

 To: Alex Zaharieff, Township Administrator 

 From: David VandenBos, Fire Chief 

 Date: 2016-04-21 

 Re: Fire Department Agenda Items for 2016-04-25 Biweekly Trustees’ Meeting 

1) UPDATED:  Purchase Request for Blue Card Training 

2) Biweekly Activity Report 
 

1) UPDATED:  Purchase Request for Blue Card Training 

 Updated text is dark,  original text is grayed out

1.1) This is a request to modify the purchase, originally approved by the Board on 2016-01-19, to 

provide Blue Card training to all firefighters at a cost not to exceed $18,800.00-an increase of 

$500.00. 

 1.2) This request is to fill an immediate need. 

 1.3) This training meets OAC § 4123:1-21-07(A) Fire department occupational safety and health, 

which states (in part):  “an incident management system shall be established with written 

standard operating procedures applying to all members involved in emergency operations… all 

members involved in emergency operations shall be trained in the system.” 

This training also partially meets the Township’s Performance Audit recommendation #37-

Develop a comprehensive training program to be applied consistently throughout the 

organization. 

This training also addresses sections of NFPA 1201 (2015 edition) Standard for Providing Fire 

and Emergency Services to the Public and NFPA 1021 (2014 edition) Standard for Fire Officer 

Professional Qualifications.  

 1.4) Cost Center/Program Area:  Fire Operations (5710) 

Object Codes:  Rents and Leases (321) , Training Services (318), Travel and Meeting Expenses 

(330) 

2016 Budget: fire department page 53, notes 5710-318, 5710-330 

 1.5) The Board of Township Trustees (in February 2015) approved a fire department request to 

provide Blue Card incident command management certification to 19 fire department officers.  

Upon completion of the certification, those officers agreed that it would be in the department’s 

best interest to provide the same training to all firefighters.  This program teaches firefighters 

to standardize management of incidents by using a combination of online learning and 

classroom simulations that are led by certified instructors who perform evaluations on students 

throughout the class. 

The curriculum contains components based upon all 4 fire officer levels identified in NFPA 1021 

Standard for Fire Officer Professional Qualifications, as they relate to incident management.  It 

also meets NFPA 1201 Standard for Providing Fire and Emergency Services to the Public 

requirement that the authority having jurisdiction establish and train to minimum standards for 

all aspects of emergency service delivery including incident management.  This program also 

satisfies the requirement of the Insurance Services Office rating schedule for fire departments 

66 of 70

66 of 70



2 / 5 

with the identified training hours for fire officers.  

Certifying one fire department officer per shift as an instructor, the township will save more 

than $9,000 in overall program costs over the first three years (compared to hiring a certified 

trainer to provide the same training).  Maintaining instructors for the fire department will allow 

flexibility to train new employees and remediate existing employees when the need arises 

rather than seek a class at another certified training site. 

 1.6) Quotes: 

 1.6.1. Tuition:  Blue Card Command in the amount of $9,224.00 [on-file].  Travel and lodging 

expenses will be best available pricing in the market. 

 1.6.2. This vendor is sole source.   

 1.6.3. n/a 

 1.7) Specifications: 

 1.7.1. n/a 

 1.7.2. n/a 

1.8) Other Considerations: 

 1.8.1. The fire department adopted this program and is integrating it into the department’s 

incident management system.  This training is part of a continuing program and does not 

have a programmed end date. 

 1.8.2. The estimated total cost for the initial certification and the required three years of 

continuing education when hiring an outside agency to provide the instruction is 

$51,324.00.  Utilizing trained fire department officers to provide the same instruction costs 

$42,184.00 over three years.  

 1.8.3. This purchase will require a cost of $3500.00 per year to maintain the certification of the 

instructors and provide the teaching materials including presentation devices necessary to 

complete the class.  

1.8.4. The software and simulations included in the Blue Card Training Program are not 

supported by the Township’s computer network (i.e. Citrix).  To accommodate the 2016 

scheduled certification training, the fire department is requesting approval to lease the 

Ohio Fire Chiefs’ Association’s Command Training Center (CTC).  This case of laptops, pre-

loaded with the necessary software and simulations for Blue Card Training, will be leased 

twice (May and November) at a cost of $250.00 each, for a total of $500.00.  Fire 

Department staff is currently researching long-term alternatives and any proposals will be 

included in the 2017 budget requests. 

 1.9) n/a. 

1.10) I make a motion to approve the following: 

Purchase Request 08077 to Ohio Fire Chiefs’ Association for two CTC leases 

in the amount of $500.00 

and to authorize, pending legal counsel’s approval of the lease agreement, 

the Township Administrator to sign for the Board 

67 of 70

67 of 70



3 / 5 

2) Biweekly Activity Report 

2.1) Senior Staff Meeting:  Senior staff met to discuss items of interest and concern, including: 

deployment of new glucometers, community room cleaning and supplies, Blue Card training and 

operational updates, Econo-Lodge training opportunities, and Second Platoon interim 

leadership. 

2.2) Labor-Management:  Labor and Management met to discuss items of mutual interest and 

concern, including pending grievances, overtime MOU, possible mattress donation, approval to 

use Class A Uniforms for special events and cable TV converter boxes. 

2.3) Lucas Devices:  The Lucas Devices will be placed in-service on 29 April, following completion 

of in-service training for all crews.  Soin Hospital’s emergency department is hosting the training, 

and their staff will be joining fire department personnel to become familiar with the devices.  

There will be a device deployed on each ALS Engine to maximize their availability in the event 

they’re needed. 

2.4) Arson Fires:  Over the past week, the fire department and sheriff’s department responded 

to a number of arson fires in the Stone Hill village area.  During the course of the investigation, 

which included the basement of a house under construction several outdoor locations, two 

juveniles (aged 10 and 14) were identified as suspects.  Questioning by a Sheriff’s Deputy 

resulted in a confession from both youths, and charges, including a 4th degree felony, have been 

filed. 

2.5) Statistics Training:  All fire department officers (except one BC on sick leave) completed four 

days of applied statistics training.  The training covered basic statistical analysis, use of Excel for 

analysis and critical, analytical thinking about fire service issues (e.g. service delivery and unit 

utilization), and project budgeting concepts (e.g. fixed and variable costs, cost of money, 

interest and inflation). 

2.6) Auxiliary Meeting:  The Auxiliary held their monthly meeting and quarterly van deployment 

training at Station 64. 

2.7) Public Outreach:  The fire department had non-incident contact with the community at the 

following events: 

Station 63 Ride Along, EMT-B student (x2) 

Station 61 Middle School Dance, Beavercreek Youth League 

Station 61 CPR and BLS 

Station 61 CPR and First Aid, Inspire School 

Station 61 CPR and First Aid, Girl Scouts 

Station 62 Medic Standby, Submarine House 

Station 62 Station Tour, Girl Scouts 

Station 63 Public Education, Soin Medical Center 

68 of 70

68 of 70



4 / 5 

2.8) Biweekly Incident Activity 

 

 

Call for Service Type 10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

3: Medical l p 163 3,940  1,308  +13%

7: False Alarm l p 8 387     96        -18%

3: Crash  q 18 342     103     +2%

6: Good Intent l p 8 281     94        +21%

5: Service l w 3 153     35        -14%

4: Hazard l p 2 138     45        +13%

1: Fire l p 0 75        17        -28%

2: Explosion l p 0 10        3          +30%

8: Severe Weather l w 0 4          -      -100%

9: Special l q 4 22        13        +78%

Total q 206 5,352 1,714 +10%

Biweekly History |  Trend | Current

Biweekly Incident Activity Report

#REF!

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

C I T YC I T Y

B A T HB A T H

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

X E N I AX E N I A

C I T YC I T Y

X E N I AX E N I A

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

M I A M IM I A M I

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

F A I R B O R NF A I R B O R N

C I T YC I T Y

S P R I N GS P R I N G

VA L L E YVA L L E Y

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

S U G A R C R E E KS U G A R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

C I T YC I T Y

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

D A Y T O ND A Y T O N

K E T T E R I N GK E T T E R I N G

R I V E R S I D ER I V E R S I D E

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

W A S H I N G T O NW A S H I N G T O N

T W PT W P

W P A F BW P A F B

.FIRE DEPARTMENT
CALLS FOR SERVICE

G Fire Stations (4)

Past Two Weeks

EMS (163)

Crash (18)

Service (25)

Fire (0)

0 2 4 6 81
Miles

69 of 70

69 of 70



5 / 5 

 

 

There have been 1,714 incidents this year, which is -1% from this time last year

The past two weeks were 04% slower than average, with 0 hours slower than 99%, and 0 hours busier than 99% of the year.

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

J F M A M J J A S O N D

1,714 incidents YTD

-15%

+15%

-1% from prior year

99%: 06 
95%: 09 

50%: 15 

5%: 23 
1%: 26 

W T F S S M T W T F S S M T
0

10

20

30

Training Type Biweekly History |  Trend | Current

EMS q 87 1,976     1,308  

Firefighting p 18 1,029     96        

Driver/Operator q 44 876        103     

Rescue p 42 1,953     94        

Officers q 561 1,268     35        

NIMS q 121 9,603     45        

Daily Dril ls q 37 620        17        

Haz-Mat q 8 409        3          

Fire Prevention q 1 110        -      

Instructors w 0 30          13        

Dispatch p 0 24          1,714  

Total ## 919 17,896 3,428 

Biweekly Training Activity Report

#REF!

10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

9.5%

2.0%

4.8%

4.5%

61.0%

13.2%

4.1%

0.9%

0.1%

0.0%

0.0%

100.0%

0 250 500 750 1,000

70 of 70

70 of 70


	4-25-16 regular trustee's meeting
	board or commission policy 04-17-2016-redlined
	Number: 001     Reviewed: XXXX
	Beavercreek Township, Greene County, Ohio
	Board and Commission Policy Manual

	letter
	CCN partnership agreement-4-19-16
	04-25-2016 GCSO Incident Analysis - Beavercreek Twp
	Finance
	Comp HR
	HR 4-25-16
	Road Trustee Packet April 25
	res for funds
	FD Agenda Items 20160425

	Button1: 


